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Comptroller of Public Accounts, State Energy Conservation Office
SEP Program 2.2: Alternative Fuels Initiatives Grant Program


Introduction

Under the State Energy Program (SEP), the Comptroller of Public Accounts (Comptroller), State Energy Conservation Office (SECO), has approximately $1,000,000 available as grant funding for eligible public entities to transition vehicle fleets to alternative fuels and hybrid-electric vehicles and convert existing vehicles to alternative fuels.  The Comptroller and SECO reserve the discretion to make multiple grant awards under the terms of this RFA.

Eligibility 

· Applicant must be a Texas city, county, or a taxpayer-supported Texas Independent School district (ISDs).
· Charter schools, county juvenile detention centers or Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Programs are not eligible.  
· For the purposes of this funding opportunity, schools within the Windham School District do not qualify.
· Applicant must provide documented evidence of matching funds totaling at least 20% of the project costs.  
· Grants may cover up to 80% of the incremental costs related to the purchase of electric/alternative fuel or hybrid vehicles and conversion of vehicles to alternative fuels.
· Maximum grant per vehicle - $5,000
· Maximum total grant per applicant - $50,000
· Competitive grants; cost-reimbursement basis.
For the purpose of this funding opportunity, alternative fuels include: compressed natural gas (CNG); liquefied petroleum gas (LPG); liquefied natural gas (LNG); electric vehicles; and hybrid vehicles which operate on both conventional fuel and on-board electrical power.

Project Time Line 

The Schedule of Events and Estimated Project Time Line for this RFA are as follows:

	Issuance of Request for Applications
	6/08/2012

	Non-Mandatory Letters of Intent Due
	6/22/2012

	Submission of Questions
	6/22/2012

	Response to Questions Posted
	6/29/2012

	Application Deadline
	7/10/2012

	Grant Award / Contract Execution
	8/20/2012











General Guidelines

1. The Comptroller is accepting applications for competitive grants on a reimbursement basis from eligible entities with a deadline of 2 pm Central Standard Time (CT), Tuesday, July 10, 2012.  
2. Grant funds may be used for the incremental cost of purchasing hybrid or alternative fuel vehicles; converting existing vehicles (model year 2011 or newer) to alternative fuels.
3. The incremental costs will be determined by the base price of the comparable conventional Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) vehicle, versus the hybrid or alternative fuel vehicle price. 
4. If a grant or grants are awarded under the terms of this RFA, the grant will be funded on a cost-reimbursement basis through a binding grant agreement.  
5. If a grant or grants are awarded under the terms of this RFA, the maximum anticipated grant amount available per applicant is $50,000.00.
6.   Indirect costs are not allowable for purposes of the grant funding available under this RFA.
7. For this Program, applicants must provide a minimum match of 20% of total project costs. 
8. Applications must be complete, including all attachments, and all applications must be submitted by the deadline set forth above in the “Schedule of Events,” to be considered. Applications sent via facsimile transmission or via electronic submission will not be accepted under this RFA. 
9. The Comptroller may request additional information from applicants at any time prior to making a grant, if any, under the terms of this RFA in order to effectively evaluate any application submitted. Comptroller and SECO shall have no liability whatsoever for any costs or expenses of any kind that may be incurred by applicants in responding to this RFA.
10. Ninety percent (90%) of the grant funding will be available after purchase of the approved vehicles, items, or other approved equipment however; the grant funding will be disbursed on a cost-reimbursement basis to the grantee, if a grant is awarded under this RFA.  The final ten percent (10%) of grant funding will become available after final closeout documents submitted by grantee, in accordance with the grant agreement and Comptroller and SECO requirements, are verified and approved, including documented expenditure of all required matching funds. 
11. If a grant is awarded under the terms of this RFA, the grant funds must be expended within twelve (12) months from the date the grant agreement is executed.

Grant Application Deadline & Delivery Requirements

1. Grant applications must be received by Comptroller no later than 2 pm CT on Tuesday, July 10, 2012, as provided in the in the Schedule of Events and Project Time Line set forth above. Late applications will not be considered. Applicants must provide one (1) complete signed original and five (5) copies of the application and supporting documents. 
2. The Comptroller will NOT accept applications submitted via facsimile transmission or via electronic mail.  Applications must either be mailed or hand-delivered to: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, Attn: William Clay Harris, Room 201, LBJ State Office Building, 111 E. 17th Street, Austin, Texas, 78774.  (Issuing Office)
3. The Comptroller’s regular office hours are 8 am to 5 pm, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.  Applicants may deliver applications (enter through the 17th Street entrance) during regular office hours up to the final deadline of 2 pm CT, on July 10, 2012. Applications must be date stamped and initialed by Comptroller staff (in the Issuing Office above) no later than 2 pm CT by the deadline in order to be considered.  Late applications will not be accepted or considered under any circumstances.



Evaluation Criteria

If a grant is awarded under the terms of this RFA, Comptroller and SECO anticipate that the selection of Applicants will be based in part on the criteria set forth in the attached score sheet and the following considerations:

1. Total Emissions Reductions
2. Levels of matching funds committed by applicant
3. Number of vehicles acquired or converted
4. Ready-to-go projects are given priority
5. Miles traveled using alternative fuels
Applicants must complete all sections of the application and score sheet.  The evaluation committee established by the Comptroller will review the score sheets and confirm scores.     

After all evaluations and scoring are completed, applications will be ranked by score and funding will be allocated to the highest scoring applications. If the total grant budget allocation is exhausted, the Comptroller may, at its discretion, offer the applicant partial funding.  

Comptroller reserves authority, in its sole judgment and discretion, to make the grant awards or to make multiple and partial grant awards under this RFA, and/or to withdraw this RFA and cancel the RFA at any time.  Comptroller and SECO shall have no liability whatsoever for any costs or expenses incurred in submission of applications in response to this RFA.

Applicants receiving preliminary acceptance for grant awards will be notified by email on or about August 20, 2012.

Reporting Requirements 

If a grant is awarded under the terms of this RFA, all grantees must comply with all Comptroller reporting requirements, including submission of activity reports, by the tenth (10th) day of each month. Failure to do so may result in immediate termination of a grant award, if any. Reporting requirements are subject to change; however, grantees will be responsible for full compliance with any and all reporting requirements, as amended throughout the term of any grant agreement awarded under this RFA, if any. 

Sample Contract 
Applicants should carefully review the Sample Grant Agreement available at: http://www.seco.cpa.state.tx.us/funding. The Sample Grant Agreement represents a sample only of the terms and conditions that must be executed between the organization receiving the grant and the Comptroller, if a grant is awarded under this RFA.  A final grant agreement must be executed before any distribution of any grant funding will be provided by Comptroller. 
Audit 
If a grant is awarded under the terms of this RFA, Comptroller or the Comptroller’s designee may audit the grant recipient’s records.  



APPLICATION: Applicants may attach additional 8.5 x 11 sheets as necessary.
 
1. General Information
	Part 1A: Applicant 
	
	
	
	

	Name of Eligible Public Entity
	Federal Tax ID
	Application Date

	
	
	

	Mailing Address 
	City
	State
	Zip Code

	
	
	
	

	County Name
	
	Total Amount Requested

	
	
	$



	Part 1B: Chief Executive Officer

	First Name
	Initial
	Last Name 
	Title

	
	
	
	

	Telephone
	Extension
	Fax
	Email Address

	
	
	



	Part 1C : Applicant Primary Contact

	First Name
	Initial
	Last Name 
	Title

	
	
	
	

	Telephone
	Extension
	Fax
	Email Address

	
	
	



	Part 1D : Applicant Secondary Contact

	First Name
	Initial
	Last Name 
	Title

	
	
	
	

	Telephone
	Extension
	Fax
	Email Address

	
	
	



	Part 1E: Administrative Contact for Accounting

	First Name
	Initial
	Last Name 
	Title

	
	
	
	

	Mailing Address
	City
	State
	Zip Code

	
	
	
	

	Telephone
	Extension
	Fax
	Email Address

	
	
	



	Part 1F: Signature and Certification by Applicant Chief Executive Officer

	I certify that I am the Chief Executive Officer and that I have reviewed this application and that I will agree to the soundness of the budget and agree to abide by the terms of the contract.  I also acknowledge that in order to receive an award, the applicant must comply with all the terms and conditions set forth in the Grant Agreement.

	Signature
	Printed Name and Title
	Date 



2. Project Plan
	PART 2: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

	2A. 	Provide a brief overview 

	
2A1. Describe your existing alternative fuel fleet characteristics:









2A2. Describe your proposed alternative fuel vehicle acquisition plan:










2A3. Where is the refueling/recharging facilities in relation to your fleet location?











	2B.   If proposing vehicle purchase or conversion, include the number, class and type of vehicles, and fuel to be utilized.  Provide greenhouse gas emission reductions using the following web site: http://www.transportation.anl.gov/modeling_simulation/clean_cities_area_interest4.html

	

	Number of Vehicles
	Class (light, medium, or heavy-duty)
	Type of vehicle
	Fuel
	Greenhouse gas reduction

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	
	
	
	





	2C. What percentage of fuel consumed by the new vehicle purchases or conversion of conventional vehicles that operate on duel fuels will be an alternative fuel?  If vehicles purchased are dedicated fuel or battery-electric then the percentage is 100%.

	
	Number of Vehicles
	Type of Fuel
	Total Annual Fuel Used by Vehicles
	Annual Total Alternative Fuel Used by Vehicles
	Percentage of Alternative Fuel Consumed

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	0
	0
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	0
	
	0
	0
	




	2D.   Will this project provide training for alternative fuel vehicle operators and/or occupants?  If so, please provide program details, the collaborating training institutions, etc.

	



































	2E.	Time Line

	
2E1. How many days from the award date will it require for budget approval to convert or purchase vehicles? ________________


2E2. How many days from the award date will it require to procure, process and receive vehicles or conversion kits?  ___________

2E3. How many days from the award date will it require for all vehicles either purchased or converted to be in use?  ___________


2E4. List any additional approvals required for this project and estimated time required from the award date for approvals.























	2E. Provide a description of the financial controls that will be used to ensure that SECO funds will only be used to pay qualified expenses.

	

























	PART 3: PROJECT PLAN FUNDING  

	3A.  Please complete the following:
If awarded, list the type of vehicle that will be purchased or converted with grant funding. Include the quantity to be purchased or converted, and estimated per unit cost. List the items in priority order with the highest priority item listed first.

	
	(A) Type of Vehicle/Vehicle Conversion
	(B) Quantity to be Purchased/converted
	(C) Incremental Cost/Unit
	(D) Total 
Cost
	(E) Amount Requested

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	$
	$
	$

	Total amount to be purchased using grant funds
	$




	PART 4: PROJECT MATCHING FUNDS (MUST BE PROVIDED WITHIN PROJECT TIME PERIOD)

	4A. Cash

	
	Source of Funds
	 Use of Funds
	A. Amount

	
	
	$

	
	
	$

	
	
	$

	
	
	$

	
	
	$

	
	
	$

	Total Matching Cash
	
	$


  

	

	

	4E. Total Matching Funds (Matching Funds Are Restrictive To The Above Categories and must be documented):

	Item 4A.  Cash
	$

	
	$

	Total Matching Funds
	$




CHECK LIST

	Applicant must fulfill minimum requirements to be eligible for funding.  Please answer yes or no to the following questions to determine eligibility.


	Check the correct box for the following questions to determine eligibility
 
· Is the applicant a Texas city, county, or a taxpayer-supported Texas Independent School District?
 Yes
 No (applicant is not eligible)

·  If the applicant is a Texas city, county, or a taxpayer-supported Texas Independent School District, is it a charter schools, county juvenile detention centers or Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Program?
 Yes (applicant is not eligible)
 No 

· Does the budget include indirect or administrative costs?

 Yes (applicant is not eligible)
 No

· Does the budget include documented eligible matching funds equal to a minimum of 20% of requested funds?

 Yes
 No (applicant is not eligible) 

· Are all sections of the application complete?

 Yes
 No (applicant is not eligible)








EVALUATION FORM

	Description
	Total Possible Points
	Applicant’s Assigned Score
	Score Assigned by Reviewer

	
1. Greenhouse Gas Emissions Savings (vehicle conversion or purchase) as recorded in Section 2B.


· 3101 CO2 equivalents pounds per vehicle or above; score, 30 points
· 3100 CO2 to 2170 CO2 equivalent pounds per vehicle ; score, 20 points
· 2069 CO2 to 500 CO2 equivalent pounds per vehicle; score, 10 points
· Below 500 CO2 equivalent pounds per vehicle; score, 0 points
	


30
	
	

	
2. How many new alternative fuel vehicles will be purchased or conventionally-fueled on-road vehicles will be converted using these grant funds? ________

· Score 5 points per vehicle up to 50 points
 
	


50
	
	

	
3. How soon after award of grant funds will your vehicle(s) be in use?

· 3-6 months; score, 15 points
· 6-9 months; score, 10 points
· 9-12 months; score, 5 points
· More than 12 months; score, 0 points
*Project completion date will be a specific deliverable in the resulting contact, if any is awarded. Failure to meet deliverables may result in termination of the contract.
	


15
	
	

	
4. County Population*

· Less than 10,000; score, 15 points

· 10,001 to 30,000; score, 10 points

· 30,001 or greater; score, 5 points

*U.S. Census Bureau Population estimates for Texas Counties (2010)
http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/48000.html

	


15
	
	

		
5. Matching funds as percentage of total project costs

· More than 50%, score 20 points

· 40% to 49%, score 15 points

· 30% to 39%, score 10 points

· 20% to 29%, score 5 points
	


20
	
	

	
6. For new vehicle purchases or conversion of conventional vehicles that operate on duel fuels (conventional and alternative fuel), what percentage of fuel consumed by the vehicle will be an alternative fuel?  Note:  If new vehicles are dedicated alternative fuel or battery-electric, score 15 points.

· 90-100%, score 15

· 80-90%, score 10

· 70-80%, score 5

· Less than 70%, score 0
	


15
	
	

	Maximum Base Score
For vehicle purchase/conversion 
	Total Possible Points
145
	Applicant’s Assigned Score
	Score Assigned by Reviewer

	Total Score Assigned By Applicant 
	
	
	

	Total Score Assigned By SECO
	
	
	



